
 

WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING 

July 22, 2015 
 

 A Regular Meeting of the Warren Zoning Board of Appeals was called on 
Wednesday, July 22, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. in the Warren Community Center Conference 
Room A, 5460 Arden Avenue, Warren, Michigan 48092. 
 
Members of the Board present: 
Steve Watripont, Chairman 
Judy Furgal, Vice-Chairwoman 
Roman Nestorowicz, Secretary 
Jean Becher 
Jules Descamps 
Henry Brasza 
Sherry Brasza 
Ann Pauta 
 

Members of the Board absent: 
Jennifer Vigus, Asst. Secretary 
 
Also present: 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Watripont called the meeting to order at 7:36 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to excuse the absence of Board Mem-
ber Vigus, due to a personal matter.  Board Member S. Brasza supported the 
motion. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8-0) 
 
 

4. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

Secretary Nestorowicz stated that the Board received a letter from the Applicant 
withdrawing Item number 6, from the meeting. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 2 

 

Chairman Watripont stated and that is a complete withdrawal.  He asked if anyone in 
the audience was present for item number 6, that it would not be heard at all.  If any-
thing comes up on the matter once more, they will be re-noticed.  He asked if there 
was a motion to adopt the agenda as amended. 

 
Motion: 
Board Member Becher made the motion to approve the Agenda as amended; 
Board Member S. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8-0). 

 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF the Regular Meeting of July 08, 2015. 
 
Motion: 
Board Member H. Brasza made the motion to approve the minutes of July 8, 
2015; Board Member Becher supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8-0). 

 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Dr. Raj Bothra (Request Withdrawn) 
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Imad Potres 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  27253 Van Dyke 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-16-485-035 
ZONE:     C-1 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: 
Remove an existing dilapidated wood fence along the west property line and install a 
new wood fence as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 14.04 Greenbelt: All non-residential uses, when adjacent to an existing res-
idence or residential district or adjacent to any alley which abuts an existing resi-
dence or residential district, shall provide and maintain a twenty (20) foot greenbelt, 
or decorative wall, in compliance with Section 2.26 of this ordinance. 
Section 2.26 Paragraph (b): A Twenty (20) foot greenbelt shall be a planting strip 
composed of two (2) rows…A decorative masonry wall, not less than three (3) feet 
nor more than six (6) feet in height and not less than eight (8) inches in thickness 
may be substituted for a greenbelt. 

 
 
 This matter was withdrawn due to Applicant’s request. 
 
 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Faith Baptist Church /  



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 3 

 

           Rev. Tim Berlin 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Rev. Tim Berlin 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  26510 Schoenherr 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-24-103-027 
ZONE:     R-1-C 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: 
Construct a monument sign; seven (7) feet overall height, with two (2) sign areas as 
follows: 30” x 72” = 15 sq. ft. and an LED message center 24” x 78.74” = 13.12 sq. 
ft., to no less than 7’ from the front property line as per plan.  Total 28.12 sq. ft. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.11, Paragraph (20): Monument sign. A sign mounted directly to the 
ground with a maximum height not to exceed five (5) feet. 
Section 4A.14, Paragraph (a): Prohibited signs. Signs that utilize flashing, blink-
ing, intermittent or moving lights or exposed incandescent light bulbs. 
Section 4A. 11, Item (7): Changeable Copy sign.  A sign whose informational con-
tent can be changed or altered by manual, electric, electro-mechanical or electronic 
means. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Rev. Tim Berlin appeared before the Board and asked if they wanted his address or 
the address of the church. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated either one; an address.  
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated church address is 26510 Schoenherr, Warren, Michigan 48089. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked for the reason of his petition.  
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated they would like to construct a 7’ digital sign. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter, to approach the podium.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter 
over to the Board. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated to the Petitioner that she noticed that in 1996, they 
were granted permission to construct a sign; she is wondering if he is willing to relin-
quish that for this new sign? 
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated to remove the old sign?  
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated to relinquish the old granting. 
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated yes. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza thanked Mr. Berlin. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 4 

 

 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated removing the old grant as far as?  
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated he is requesting the new, so… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated so that they would not have two (2) signs. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated yes; so, they would relinquish the old and this 
would be the new. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked how much further forward it is going to be than the older 
one. 
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated not a whole lot; he believes the current sign is 12’ off. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated and this is at 7’. 
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated this would be 7’. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated that he has been told that the Board has a record that 
should have been read into the record at the public participation. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated the Board did receive one letter from a neighbor, 
Lorteo Martini, which was in opposition to this new sign. 
 
Board Member Becher stated to the petitioner that they are going to have an LED 
message board on this and how often do they plan on changing the message on 
their LED message board? 
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated it would probably be daily. 
 
Board Member Becher stated it is a daily thing?  So they would not be changing it 
more than four (4) times an hour then? 
 
Rev. Tim Berlin stated no. 
 
Board Member Becher thanked Mr. Berlin and stated if no other Board Members had 
anything else to discuss, she would like to make her motion. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Becher made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Construct a monument sign; seven (7) feet overall height, with two (2) sign areas as 
follows: 30” x 72” = 15 sq. ft. and an LED message center 24” x 78.74” = 13 sq. ft 
approximately, to no less than 7’ from the front property line as per plan. With the 
conditions: the LED message would not change more than (4) times an hour; 
to relinquish previous sign package; and that there would be no flashing, no 
blinking, no scrawling and no animation displayed on the message center. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 5 

 

Secretary Nestorowicz asked for discussion.  He was going to support the motion; 
however, normally when the Board does the LED signs, they always state that 
there would be no flashing, no blinking and no animation. 
 
Board Member Becher stated the Board has not done any for a while.  She asked 
Mr. Berlin that they are not going to have flashing, blinking, or scrawling, that it is 
going to be… 
 
Tim Berlin stated no; it was their understanding that was not even legal. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated it is not. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated but they would like to clarify that at this point as well. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated because they would like to be able to put that in 
there; therefore, it would be very clear to them that they do not do the flashing, 
scrawling, animation and all of that kind of stuff. 
 
Board Member Becher stated that it is in the record that the Board has advised him 
also.  She stated okay that is her motion.  
 
*The additional conditions lastly discussed were included to the initial motion* 

 
Reason being: Lack of Identification, Not a Detriment to the Area and Size and 
Shape of the Lot. 
 
Board Member Pauta supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Becher; Support by 
Board Member Pauta, supporting the item as written, due to lack of identification, 
not a detriment to the area and size and shape of the lot.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (8-0). 

 

Board Member Becher  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Descamps Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED with Conditions. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 6 

 

8. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT:  Brose 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Rob McConachie or Mr. John Crow 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  25295 Guenther Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-19-326-026 
ZONE:     M-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Install three pylon/monument signs as follows: 
1. One sign (A) 70.86” in height x 22.25” overall width with a sign area 56.5” x 

19.68= 7.72 sq. ft. as per the plan by lobby entrance. 
2. One sign (B) 70.86” in height x 22.25” overall width with a sign area 56.5” x 19.68” 

= 7.72 sq. ft. as per the plans. 
3. One sign (C) 70.86” (5.9’) in height x 17.72” wide = 8.72 sq. ft. as per the plans. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.35 (b): One freestanding on premise sign or advertising display of a size 
not to exceed 75 sq. ft. shall be allowed in industrial zones M-2… 
Section 4A.11 Monument signs (20): A sign mounted directly to the ground with a 
maximum height not to exceed five (5) feet. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Rob McConachie, 25295 Guenther Road, Warren, Michigan 48091 appeared before 
the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked Mr. McConachie for the reason of his petition.  
 
Rob McConachie stated they are trying to be in compliance with their corporate de-
sign. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter to approach the podium.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over 
to the Board.  He believes that when they previously appeared before the Board, 
everything was reviewed and believes he was in favor of it at that time, but there 
was a mathematical issue, but believes all of that has been corrected at this time. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
1.) One sign (A) 70.86” in height x 22.25” overall width with a sign area 56.5” x 

19.68= 7.72 sq. ft. as per the plan by lobby entrance. 
2.) One sign (B) 70.86” in height x 22.25” overall width with a sign area 56.5” x 

19.68” = 7.72 sq. ft. as per the plans. 
3.) One sign (C) 70.86” (5.9’) in height x 17.72” wide = 8.72 sq. ft. as per the plans. 

 
Reason being: Lack of Identification, Needs Approval of the Board, and Not a Det-
riment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Pauta supported the motion. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 7 

 

 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member S. Brasza; Support 
by Board Member Pauta, in support of the item as written; for reasons being: Lack 
of Identification and Not a Detriment to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (8-0). 

 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary Nestorowicz Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Becher  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Sejad Melkic, Masjid Al-Furqaan 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Hisham Turk / Turk Associates Inc. 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  27643 Schoenherr 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-14-430-032 
ZONE:     PB 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Build a canopy over the rear middle door to no less than nineteen (19) feet of the 
rear property line as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 5.11 Item 11 Rear Yard setback: Each lot shall have a rear yard of not 
less than forty-five (45) feet… 
 
Chairman Watripont asked if the petitioner was present.  He asked the individual at 
the podium to state his name and address for the record. 
 
Sejad Melkic, 4552 Westland Street, Dearborn, Michigan, appeared before the 
Board and stated that he is the president of Masjid Al-Furqaan. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked for the reason for his petition. 
 
Sejad Melkic stated they were appeared about a month ago for site plan approval.  
They have a canopy in the back of the building right now that was like a porch 
canopy and they are only asking to extend it a little bit so that there would be enough 
space to put a HVAC unit on top of the canopy as well.  In the beginning, they were 
thinking about putting it next to the building where the current AC was and all, but 
they found out that if they were to do that there would not be enough clearance to go 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 8 

 

around and they need to have clearance all the way around the units as he believes 
for maintaining it.  As they were searching for solutions, this seemed to be the most 
efficient for probably the looks as well.  It is symmetrical and it would be right in the 
middle of the building in the back.  It will not be visible from Schoenherr as far as he 
knows but it would look very nice; and it would be efficient.  They were already 
approved by the site plan and all.  They were recommended to get an approval from 
the Zoning Board as well. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated so that was his hardship, correct?  The reasoning for the 
request is they need room so that the HVAC could be up there and everything. 
 
Sejad Melkic stated right; there is a canopy right now.  The one that is there right 
now perhaps may not be strong enough; he does not know…the one they are going 
to extend of course has to have the proper support. They already have the drawings; 
it has been approved by them, so everything is in check, it is just that because it is a 
setback area that is why they need the variance.  The building was already setback, 
so it is just the issue that this is another thing that they must get a setback for. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item to approach the podium. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated the Board did receive one letter from Mrs. Crawford, at 
13507 Deana, in opposition to this request. 
 
Chairman Watripont thanked Secretary Nestorowicz and stated it has been received 
in the file.  Hearing and seeing no one else, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated he has seen the plans and all, but his question is 
exactly what kind of canopy is this? Is it an aluminum canopy, is it part of a building, 
because nowhere in the plans, does it explain what type of canopy and now he is 
saying that it has to be strong enough for the air-conditioning unit; so he is just 
wondering what kind of addition is going to be on the back. 
 
Sejad Melkic stated his architect could not be present because he is overseas but 
had engineers working on this. It will be a wooden structure which was plenty for the 
purpose of the HVAC unit that was a ten ton unit by the capacity not the weight itself; 
it produces about 5 ton, 7 ton, 10 ton. According to all the calculations, they needed 
the 10 ton for the size of their building to cool it down.  He does not know the actual 
weight but it was not 10 ton by all means; it is in pounds and it is not a huge thing. 
For a fact if he puts it next to the building, there is a ramp and so it would force him 
to move the whole ramp and would not even look nice from the back; it would be 
symmetrical.  He has seen a lot when of this when he discussed it with the architect 
who sent him some samples of his work from the past; it looked nice and almost 
looked like a balcony that it would nicely be cut around.  If someone gets up there to 
do maintenance of some sort they would be safe; it is a wooden structure.  He thinks 
they may add just for looks around the posts some kind of brick or something to 
match the building, but it would be up to code as far as the capacity and weight that 
it has to hold up there. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 9 

 

 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated he has one more question, because normally the 
variance says that the setback would be 45’, he is asking for 19’, so that is half of 
what the variance is asking for; now he mentioned that the air-conditioning unit is 
going to be on the roof; since this is so close to the neighbors, is that unit going to be 
then something that all of the neighbors and houses that back up to this are going to 
be able to see and hear with that being up on top of the canopy? 
 
Sejad Melkic stated to be honest, the canopy that is there right now they can see it if 
they wish to look.  The one they are going to be building, it is already there but they 
just need to extend it a little bit and then put the unit up and of course, this time 
around, they are going to have to put the fence, like a balcony look, and being 
honest, the neighbors are going to be able to see it.  These are newer units and as 
far as he knows, there should not be any disruption to anyone around and plus their 
parking lot is not right next to any of the houses there; not that close.  Another fact, 
they have met quite of few neighbors that are immediately close to them and they 
have been in close contact with them every time he goes there, they come out and 
talk to him and stuff; especially the main ones that are next to…the one gentleman 
that had come here before, they have kept contact pretty nicely and then the lady 
next door, they cut the tree down for her and stuff and she has been very pleasant; 
her son has been very pleasant, so he does not foresee any issues.  It is not 
something uncommon, they do this at many places and that was why when he 
looked at all of the things they could do, that seemed to be the one that he thinks 
satisfy all sides and get the job done.  
 
Chairman Watripont asked that this canopy would not be enclosed, correct?  
 
Sejad Melkic asked what the Chairman meant by enclosed. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked if it would have walls around it. 
 
Sejad Melkic stated not walls, like as far as he has seen them, they are supposed to 
have…they could not have them open either, so the unit… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated not the unit, the actual underneath. 
 
Sejad Melkic stated no; underneath will be like a covered space like a porch and 
someone could actually sit there. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated but it would be open. 
 
Sejad Melkic stated it will be open, of course; just the two pillars. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated the pillars; he means obviously if in the winter, they could 
put sides up and stuff temporary and stuff like that. 
 
Sejad Melkic stated they probably would not. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 10 

 

Board Member Descamps stated he had a question for Everett Murphy, Zoning 
Inspector.  He asked Mr. Everett that he has obviously seen the plans for this; did 
this go through Planning? 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector stated it is his understanding that it received site 
plan approval. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated and obviously, they are going to be required to get 
a permit to do all of the…; then he does not see anything really objecting this at all. 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector stated no, and to answer the question about the 
sound just a little bit better; today’s units, this is going to be a brand new unit; they 
are designed with sound in mind and this unit is not going to be loud if it is at least 
20’ away from the back of a residential property, he does not see any way that it 
would disturb them as far as noise.  The structure that he (Mr. Melkic) is talking 
about, around it is just a guard for servicing, so someone does not fall off the canopy 
while they are servicing it but that is not going to hide it; but they would probably see 
that as well. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated to the Board Members that she was able to stop by 
this and literally it is what it would be considered the porch or entrance into the back 
of the building, so it is something that is existing; they are just going to extend it.  
Most commercial use of HVAC systems go on roofs, so it is not anything that is a 
real big stretch and due to the size and shape of the property itself, is why she thinks 
these setbacks are required because the backyard; there is a big cement wall there, 
so it is just the setback that is odd. 
 
Board Member Descamps asked if any other Board Members had any questions or 
concerns. 
 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Build a canopy over the rear middle door to no less than nineteen (19) feet of the 
rear property line as per the plan. 

 
Reason being: Unique Property, Due to Size and Shape of the Lot, Not a Detri-
ment to the Area and Needs Approval of the Board. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Descamps; Sup-
port by Board Member S. Brasza in support of the variance as written.  Reasons 
being: Not a Detriment to the Area, Size and Shape of the Lot and Unique Proper-
ty. He asked for Roll Call. 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 11 

 

 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (8-0). 

 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Becher  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion; she  

      believes it will be improvement to the building. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Dunkin Donuts /  
           Mr. Nicholas Shango 

REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Nicholas Shango 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  3827, 4001 and 4007 Eleven Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-18-477-030 
ZONE:     C-2 & C-1 & P 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Install signs as follows: 
1. One (1) wall sign “Dunkin’ Donuts (cup logo)” @ 22.5” x 18’-8” = 35 sq. ft. on the 

south elevation. 
2. One (1) wall sign “Drive Thru” @ 25” x 65-5/8” = 8.99 sq. ft. on the south eleva-

tion. 
TOTAL 43.99 SQ. FT. ON SOUTH ELEVATION OVER DOOR OF 3827 11 MILE 
3. One (1) wall sign “Dunkin’ Donuts Coffee & More” @ 64-7/16” x 132-11/16” = 

59.37 sq. ft. on the east elevation. 
4. One (1) wall sign “Drive Thru” @ 25” x 65-5/8” = 8.99 sq. ft. on the east eleva-

tion. 
TOTAL 68.36 SQ. FT. ON THE EAST ELEVATION OF 4007 11 MILE. 
5. One (1) monument sign, 16’ in height, with a sign area 6’-6” x 11.5’ = 74.75 sq. 

ft., to within three (3) feet from the south property line. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.11: Monument sign. A sign mounted directly to the ground with a max-
imum height not to exceed five (5) feet. 
Section 4A.17, Paragraph (b): Setbacks. All freestanding signs or ground signs 
shall be set back from the right-of-way line a minimum distance equal distance to the 
height of the sign. 
Section 4A.19, Clearance: All freestanding signs shall have an under clearance of 
ten (10) feet beneath the sign structure. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 12 

 

Section 4A.35, Paragraph (b): One freestanding sign not to exceed seventy-five 
(75) square feet shall be allowed for each business in commercial business and in-
dustrial districts zoned C-1, C-2, C-3, M-1, and M-2. 
Section 4A.35 (c): Total wall signage of a size not to exceed forty (40) sq. ft. shall 
be allowed for each business in C-1, C-2, C-3, M-1 and M-2. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Nick Shango, 3827 Eleven Mile, Warren, appeared before the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked Mr. Shango the reason for his petition. 
 
Nick Shango stated the reason for his petition is that his existing gas pump sign was 
built before, maybe over ten years ago and it is beaten up and it needs to be 
changed and he also needs more visibility for his Dunkin Donuts; he is the operator 
for the stores in Warren and that one is on his property.  The sign he has on the ser-
vice drive is blocked by a tree and he is not able to touch the tree because it belongs 
to the city; so he figures if he asks the Board to take down the Dunkin Donut sign, 
which is pretty big and he would construct one newer and nicer monument sign in-
stead of having two on the south property line.  He feels like that would be a fair ex-
change and that also gives him more visibility to his Dunkin; it is kind of hidden in 
there. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter to approach the podium.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over 
to the Board. 
 
Board Member Becher stated she gets so confused with all these signs there, but… 
 
Chairman Watripont thanked Board Member Becher and stated because he was go-
ing to say the same thing. 
 
Board Member Becher stated the wall sign the Dunkin Donut sign and the cup logo, 
those are already on the building; are they not? 
 
Nick Shango apologized and stated that this was a little tricky; so, he is allowed… 
 
Board Member Becher stated she is just curious because she did go to the property 
and looked.  She just wants to make sure she gets all of the ‘i’ dotted and the‘t’ 
crossed—signs scare her sometimes.  But, they are already there; he is asking per-
mission for the signs that are over the building, correct?  
 
Nick Shango stated yes and no; so he is… 
 
Board Member Becher asked if he was going to change those out.  
 
Nick Shango stated no; it depends on which side she is addressing. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 13 

 

 
Board Member Becher stated she is speaking about that if he was standing on the 
south side of his property and he is looking at the Dunkin Donuts building, there is a 
sign that says Dunkin Donuts and there is the little coffee cup logo.  Now are those 
signs he is going to keep or is he going to change them? 
 
Nick Shango stated he is going to keep that sign; what he is asking for is a drive thru 
burst and that is the 8.99 square feet. 
 
Board Member Becher asked if he had that Drive Thru up or is that the one that is 
over on the east side of the building. 
 
Nick Shango stated he did not put up the Drive Thru because he is allowed 40 
square feet and the sign he put up is just sign of 40’.  So, he would be over 4 square 
feet if he… 
 
Board Member Becher stated okay, so he needs the Drive Thru sign to direct the 
traffic is what he is saying.  
 
Nick Shango stated yes, just so people would know that he has a Drive Thru; he ac-
tually left a gap, he did not install it yet; that was why he came here today and that is 
why… 
 
Board Member Becher stated okay, so he is going to be putting the Drive Thru 
where? 
 
Nick Shango stated right next to where it says Dunkin Donuts, right to the left of it, 
he left like six feet to put the circular burst. 
 
Board Member Becher stated on the building. 
 
Nick Shango stated on the building. 
 
Board Member Becher stated okay; so it would be on the building. 
 
Nick Shango stated correct. 
 
Board Member Becher stated and then he is going to take down, did he say, that on 
the south side of the building he is going to take down a sign that is being blocked by 
the…he has so many signs, it confuses with them; so he is going to take down the 
pylon sign and go to a monument. 
 
Nick Shango stated yes. 
 
Board Member Becher stated she thinks that is smart because people do not drive 
looking up, they have their eyes level where the cars are going.  So, he will give up 
where the Board granted those pylon signs to him; he will relinquish those?  
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 14 

 

Nick Shango stated correct; here is what he is asking for; he knows this is a lot of 
text there, but all he is asking for is an additional 4 square feet on his wall sign.  He 
is allowed 40 square feet above his door; all he is asking is 4 square feet additional. 
 
Board Member Becher stated she could live with that. 
 
Nick Shango stated and the on the south side is where he is helping them; he wants 
to take down his Dunkin Donuts pylon, which is enormous and he wants to take 
down his PB sign and he wants to reconstruct in the same location where the PB 
sign a… 
 
Board Member Becher stated a monument. 
 
Nick Shango stated yes a monument sign; because he was approved a couple of 
years ago on the east side… 
 
Board Member Becher stated for another monument. 
 
Nick Shango stated for another monument; he is going to… 
 
Board Member Becher stated she remembers she was sitting at the Board. 
 
Nick Shango stated yes; he is going to make them match, make them nice, dress 
them up brick, crowing molding and make them nice. 
 
Board Member Becher stated so he would surrender those other variances then. 
 
Nick Shango stated he would surrender the variance that the Board gave him years 
ago for the Dunkin Donuts pylon sign. 
 
Board Member Becher asked what about the PB; since he is going to be taking it 
down, or replacing it actually. 
 
Nick Shango stated yes, right. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he (Mr. Shango) would surrender the PB one and then 
he would get a new one. 
 
Nick Shango stated right; he is going to break that one down, use the footing and 
build a new one.  That would be the monument sign. 
 
Board Member Becher stated okay; but he would surrender all of the other stuff that 
went along with it because he would still have to have that base there. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated all he is asking for is a new one in its place and if the 
Board gives it to him, he would surrender that one. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 15 

 

Nick Shango stated he would surrender whatever…he is going to take them from 
two to one and make one nice one. 
 
Board Member Becher (laughingly) stated that he did not bring any donuts tonight. 
(Laughter) 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he has a question on the new monument sign, he 
knows that it would be an improvement for the property and get rid of two and only 
have one, which is nice; is he going to have an LED on that or is that going to be a 
changeable copy that he would have to go out there and do that. 
 
Nick Shango apologized and stated he could not hear Board Member Descamps. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated looking at his plan that has the cost for the BP. 
 
Nick Shango stated yes; he did this in Sterling Heights.  The top couple of feet are 
going to be for the gas station; he still has to advertise the gas station; he will put the 
logo and he has the tenants, he has the Coney Island, he has himself… 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he just wants to know if he is going to have LED in 
there. 
 
Nick Shango stated yes. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he is going to have LED; it does not state on the… 
 
Nick Shango stated when they make the box, he does not know what the depth of it 
will be, but it will be nicely lit; it will be beautiful. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he does not have a problem with the LED; but they 
just needed to make sure. 
 
Nick Shango stated for an LED, it depends on how deep that box is and if it is shal-
low he could, if it is a couple of feet it may not be lit up; the channel letters he put on 
the building are LED. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated the channel letters out there would look nice. 
 
Nick Shango thanked Board Member Descamps. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated he is very familiar with this property, he thinks having 
the one monument sign instead of the two signs would be a great improvement; he 
is all for that.  His question is, because he does have a lot of signs on that property, 
the monument sign, even as he shows it, would show Dunkin Donuts, Drive Thru, 
and stuff on the signs; so the two monument signs would actually say that the Dun-
kin Donuts is a drive thru and all that.  His question especially since he is over the 40 
square feet that he is allowed, why does he still have to on both elevations, say 
Drive Thru, if it is going to be on the monument signs? 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 16 

 

 
Nick Shango stated that was an excellent question.  He has seven (7) Dunkin Do-
nuts and four (4) of them are in his gas stations and they would never believe how 
many people walk into his gas station and do not even know that he has a Dunkin 
Donuts next door and they are connected.  The biggest thing for him is that a couple 
of Tim Horton’s opened up over the past few years as they know; Ten and Ryan, 15 
Mile and Ryan and he took a hit.  He just remodeled his store and if he does not do 
anything on the outside then nothing changes for him businesswise; he has to get 
some visibility; he put the orange, changed awnings and made them orange, so to 
call their Drive Thru big in this business; if someone is a passersby and they do not 
live in Warren and he gets a lot of service drive people, one would never know his 
store is in there; it just does not have its own imaging.  Like his store on Van Dyke, 
he just remodeled that next to McDonald’s; he sees the standalone, he sees all of 
the good stuff; the one on 13 Mile and Mound; it shows, it is a Dunkin Donuts it is 
obvious that it is a Drive Thru.  This one is a little different scenario; he knows he is 
being pushy, but really it would tremendously help him a lot, just to know.  He even 
made that burst, they had different size, and he got the biggest one he could get, the 
Drive Thru, and it is just essential because a lot of people do not know.  That is his 
experience in this business. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated just to follow up with this because compared to many 
other properties, it is like driving around the city, most gas stations only have one (1) 
sign that has their prices.  They do not have one on each side for the traffic.  He 
even mentioned the Tim Horton’s that opened up; that Tim Horton’s has one (1) py-
lon sign that serves all of the traffic, they do not have one (1) sign on Ten Mile, one 
(1) sign on Ryan; they have one (1) sign for both.  He is asking for two (2) big mon-
ument signs, one on each side, which is a lot of signage and then he is asking for 
additional signage over what is allowed on the building.  It is like if they give him the 
monument sign, which is going to be an improvement because he does think that 
the monument sign would look a lot better; why does he have to have that also on 
the building. 
 
Nick Shango stated he will explain; he is allowed another 40 square feet for the va-
cancies that he has; he has two (2) more vacancies in that plaza, which he does not 
use; they could borrow 4 square feet and put it on his and minus four (4) off of theirs 
and when he puts theirs, the Board could call it 36’; he is just suggesting, he is not 
saying that it is the right thing to do.  The other thing is that he could leave that ugly 
sign there that is falling apart with the numbers coming off and rusting, so he thinks 
that he is giving back 75 square feet that he does not have to; that sign is a big one 
for Dunkin Donuts, it is humongous.  He does not believe that he is asking for too 
much to be honest with them, he is just calling out that he has a Drive Thru and 
again he is an end cap and they could not tell him that if they are on the service 
drive that they would know that he has a Dunkin Donuts in that; it is at the west end 
of the building, there is a big tree there on the service drive; if they know the area, 
they know but if they do not know the area, which is what he gets, most of his busi-
ness comes out of the service drive, it just helps to know that there is a Dunkin Do-
nuts and that by the way it is a Drive Thru.  He is on the west land; he is not on the 
east land like the Coney Island, which is very visible.  He can see the awning; he 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 17 

 

can see the sign so that is why.  He feels like he is hidden and that is why he is 
spending all of this money anyways.  The gas station, everyone could see the cano-
py, it is pretty obvious.  The other thing is that his gas stations are a lot nicer too, he 
spends a lot of money improving the properties and they know that his properties 
look good; he takes care of them. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated and actually he does and to be honest he buys his gas 
from there because he lives in that neighborhood; he just thinks that if he would not 
put the two (2) Drive Thru signs, that is 18 square feet, and that would actually put 
him a lot closer to the 40 square feet. 
 
Nick Shango stated no, it is still 40 square feet; for the wall sign all he is asking for is 
an additional 4 square feet.  He is not 40 square feet right now.  When they add that 
Drive Thru burst, that puts him at 44’ without it, he is actually under 40’.  He did not 
put it without their permission; he only put what he was allowed. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he understands where Mr. Nestorowicz is coming from 
and he understands what he (Mr. Nick) is saying; as someone who would go by and 
purchase his items, he believes the Drive Thru on his front entrance is not neces-
sary; he actually could understand it a little on the sidewall, so he does not know if 
that makes sense to people, but Board Member S. Brasza is next. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza thanked the Chair and stated and he (Mr. Shango) knows 
how much she likes all of the ‘bling’ that he has; what surprises her is that it reminds 
her of a woman who over jewelry—has way too much jewelry—that is what she gets 
out of Dunkin Donuts.  He has his orange awnings—that is Dunkin Donuts, those 
awnings—that is number one, number two is that he has the east facing sign, which 
is huge, he has his store sign and he has the two (2) ‘Drive Thru’ on the entrance of 
both the south and the east entrances.  He is going to put the monument sign; she 
goes through the Drive-in, he has an illegal sign that is quite large, that is on the light 
pole by his board and then he has a standalone that is between the one that is on 
the light pole, then he has a standalone and then he has where people ask for their 
order.  The Mound store they negotiated due to the fact that he wanted to put these 
stickers on the window and she assumes that 1, 2, 3, and 4 are not stickers, she as-
sumes they are actual boxes of light. 
 
Nick Shango stated yes, they are channel letters; what he is asking for is to take out 
the box sign and put channel letters instead. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated she so much agrees with Chairman Watripont that it 
is overkill especially for the Drive Thru; now she could understand he is saying Drive 
Thru on the monument sign, he is saying Drive Thru on the front of the building; 
what is better the south facing or the east facing? 
 
Nick Shango stated of course east facing but he gets service drive people too. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza asked if he does not feel they get that from the monument 
sign. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 18 

 

 
Nick Shango stated what if they miss it?  How about if they are pumping gas? He 
has one in Sterling Heights on 19 Mile and Van Dyke and he could tell the Board 
that his business is building; only 15% of his business is drive-in; people do not 
know that he has a ‘Drive Thru’ and he has two (2) monument signs double sided; it 
is just the thing that people do not think that unless there is such as… 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated okay, if she is outside of her car pumping gas and 
she sees a Dunkin Donuts, is she going to get in her car and go around the drive in 
or is she just going to go in and buy a donut?  
 
Nick Shango stated maybe for next time; if she knows what he means. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated maybe next time, but she already knows that Dun-
kin Donuts is there. 
 
Nick Shango stated they would know that is there but they might not know that he 
has a drive thru. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza asked if all of his Dunkin Donuts are drive thru. 
 
Nick Shango stated no; half of Dunkin Donuts in Michigan do not have drive thru. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated she is asking about all of his businesses. 
 
Nick Shango stated for all his businesses, he has six (6) out of seven (7). 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated she could not go with this; he does not only have all 
of the ‘bling’ in the windows… 
 
Nick Shango stated how about if he promises this, that stuff he does not care about, 
he will take them all down and those just come with the P.O.P from the franchisers, 
and they just put them up… 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated she also missed the one that is underneath the 
sign; he had a big one on the light pole; the standalone and he has one underneath 
all of his menu board. 
 
Nick Shango stated that was all from them, he could take those all down, but to 
please give him the drive thru; it is only 8.99 square feet; he is not trying to be 
greedy but is begging the Board to give it to him; drive thru signs are essential and 
people have to know; he really needs it to jump out. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated also what she did not hear from his is that he is 
changing his logo.  She means was this not all about changing his logo over. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 19 

 

Nick Shango stated yes, they now have ‘Coffee and More’; they are just tying his 
hands and are actually making Dunkin Donuts…like how Mound is, if they had seen 
it; it is all scrunched up; he does not like this.  They are killing him. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated so he is saying that he will be taking down all of that 
other signage though? 
 
Nick Shango stated he will take down all of the stickers on both stores.  He already 
took down all the ones at Mound and he even told Everett that he took them down.  
Everett had told him and he took them down. He will take it out of there. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated in that same vein he would not put it up anymore? 
 
Nick Shango stated he promises; the Board is going to be seeing him every month 
for the next four (4), five (5) years, and if he does, then they could say no more.  
 
Board Member Descamps stated they do have a long memory. 
 
Nick Shango stated he will not put them up anymore.  Whatever they send him, the 
employees put them up but he never told his managers and that was all.  The stick-
ers will not be on there anymore; he even took them off his gas station anyways. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated they do have a Board Member that fills up his gas tank 
there all of the time. 
 
(Slight laughter among everyone) 
 
Nick Shango stated as he mentioned, they could hold him to it or if they want him to 
put it on an affidavit he would be happy to do so.  It is clutter and he knows what the 
Board is saying; it is ugly and he does not like it either.  But on their planograms the 
managers read, they are instructed to put this here and put a wall sign, on and on.  
He will clean all of that up and that is not an issue. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated he knows that he (Mr. Shango) is getting new signs 
with the new logo, but part of his request item # 3, which is on the east elevation 
where he is changing the sign to Dunkin Donuts Coffee and more, even on his draw-
ing, his existing sign is 36 sq. ft., according to his drawing, which is under the 40 sq. 
ft. and all of that, but he is increasing it to according to this, 54.16 square feet on his 
drawing not counting the Drive Thru; it is like why is it that he needs to go up by al-
most 20 sq. ft. on the east elevation with the new sign? 
 
Nick Shango stated well it is because they are Channel letters, so they are all sepa-
rate like separate raceways and then that Coffee and More accounts for maybe 10’ 
or 12’ of that, so that is something else that he has to add with the logo.  It is going 
to be roughly the same size but they are stacked; just like Mound, exactly the same 
as Mound that is how it is going to be and he is going to line them up with the Coney 
Island then everything on the east façade will be channel letters; it will look nice.  He 
is going to change all of the parking lot lights to LED.  They are getting a new cano-



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 20 

 

py imaging, new pumps; those are all coming in the next month.  Once he gets the 
sign down, they will be coming to redo everything and they are going to be getting 
LED lights underneath the canopy too.  It will be a beautiful sight. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked on his sight plan, it says that he is going to have on the 
east elevation 54.18 sq. ft. but in his request, it exceeds 60 sq. ft.? 
 
Nick Shango asked if it was on his drawing that it said 60 sq. ft. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated on his drawing it says 54.18 sq. ft. and he thought maybe 
it was because the drive thru was not included on there, but his drive thru is at 59 sq. 
ft. and it exceeds that already. 
 
Nick Shango stated he does not think it is that big, he thinks it is closer to 40 sq. ft. 
or something. 
 
(Inaudible discussion between Everett Murphy and Board Members and between 
Everett Murphy and Mr. Shango) 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector asked if the Board was speaking of item # 3. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated numbers 3 and 4 on the plan that says 54 sq. ft. 
 
(Inaudible discussion between Mr. Murphy and Mr. Shango) 
 
Chairman Watripont stated that it was published properly but it is the plan that is… 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector stated so they are speaking about the notation 
where he (Mr. Shango) is going to remove the existing wall sign and replace it with 
54.18 sq. ft.? 
 
Chairman Watripont stated yes. 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector stated he believes that Mr. Shango originally sub-
mitted a different package to them before it came to the Board and before they even 
submitted it, he came back with different pictures and some different sizes and they 
changed them around a little bit and some of the signs are stated way larger than 
what they were originally going to be because of what Lynn Martin and Mr. Shango 
were going to do, was divide up a lot of those signs into individual signs and they 
were going to ask for a lot more signs and he told them not to do that and that they 
would go to the extremes and they are going to count them as one sign, so a lot of 
the square footage probably does have a lot of white space in it, but he did go to the 
extremes on it because even later down the line, it would even save Mr. Shango 
some money on the permit fees, by having them as one big sign instead of getting 
seven or eight signs.  He thinks that when he (Mr. Shango) originally wrote the plan, 
he just did not change that note on the plan to match the sign.  Does that make 
sense?  
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 21 

 

Chairman Watripont stated it makes sense to him. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated he really appreciates how nice his unit is looking 
and they are all nice and clean and agrees to his eyes that it is probably too much 
signage, but he (Mr. Shango) is the business man and he is the one that is putting 
this up there and so he is going to trust his judgment on that part, so he is okay with 
the way that Mr. Shango has it laid out; only because there is not neighbors around, 
there is not a lot of impact to the surrounding community and so, it is a service drive 
and so it is not like it is there.  That is just his personal opinion that he is okay with 
this; the little bit of 4’.  If he wants to go over the top, he is the businessman and he 
thinks that if it was a lot more over, he would be concerned, but it is not that far; that 
is just his personal feedback. 
 
Nick Shango thanked Board Member H. Brasza and stated that he really appreciates 
it and also too, when he asks he tries to make sure that it would be beautiful and that 
it would make the building look better and that it is not a cloud sign.  Everything is 
channel letters and he spends a lot of money on the signs; it is extra money but he 
makes it look sharp. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza asked if anyone else had any other comments. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he still thinks there is too much there and he is willing to 
give in a lot but thinks the drive thru over the building is too much; he knows that it is 
a 9’ sign but he thinks that might change his vote. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated she agrees totally on the monument sign because it is 
going to be an improvement; it is just all of the rest of it; there is just too much there. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated she thinks they are quivering over 5 sq. ft. and she 
thinks it is ridiculous. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he agrees. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he was also looking for when these signs were to refer-
ence them as far as relinquishing; 2002… 
 
(Inaudible discussion of Board Members) 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated in 2002 is the gas station sign. 
 
Nick Shango stated in 2002, it is a 10’ x 7.5’ (75 sq. ft.), yes; he is giving them back 
75 sq. ft., he is asking to be given 4 sq. ft. for the drive thru sign. 
 
Board Member Becher stated it was April 10, 2002. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated that is the gas station. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 22 

 

Chairman Watripont stated that is the gas station; he does not see the Dunkin Do-
nuts.  
 
(Inaudible discussion between Board Members) 
 
Chairman Watripont stated and he is also relinquishing the sign on the east eleva-
tion.  He is requesting larger… 
 
Board Members Becher, S. Brasza and H. Brasza all responded no, he is not. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he is requesting larger but he is not at… 
 
Board Member Becher stated not on the east; on the south side. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated south side he had none, because it was in compliance; 
right? 
 
Nick Shango stated yes. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated the south side was the 40’ and that was in compliance. 
 
Nick Shango stated that is in compliance, yes, and the drive thru sign; these come 
standard, he does not pick the sizes on them, so that is why sometimes he… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated but he did have the one on the side of the building ap-
proved on the east elevation, did he not? 
 
Nick Shango stated yes, that was approved; that was called something else. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked if it was called offsite. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated that it was down the other side of the strip. 
 
Nick Shango stated for him he could change that wall sign and make it; it would not 
look nice. 
 
(Further inaudible discussion between Board Members) 
 
Chairman Watripont stated (a) was on the other side, which should have been relin-
quished in 2013 when he got the monument sign, but he does not see that also. 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector stated it is (a) and (b) 4/10/2002. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated within the motion, he would like to get the relinquishing of 
the sign, so that is what he is looking for. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated it was just one in 2002, the pole sign.  That is all he 
is relinquishing. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 23 

 

 
Chairman Watripont stated he is relinquishing the Dunkin Donuts by the driveway. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated which that is the pole sign! 
 
Chairman Watripont asked is not the gas station the pole sign as well. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated no; that is on the building. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated the 2 on Eleven Mile. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated 2 and 3 are on the building, 4 and 5 is on the build-
ing and 1 is on the… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated but there are two (2) signs on Eleven Mile and he is get-
ting rid of those and putting one monument sign.  
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated but Dunkin Donuts is only on one of them; the other 
one is the gas station sign; he is not going to have it in the package. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated on 4-10-2002. 
 
Nick Shango stated it was 4-10-2002, there is (a) and (b). 
 
Board Member Furgal stated there are (a) 10’ x 7.5’ (75 sq. ft.) pole sign to the prop-
erty line on Eleven Mile Road (fast food advertisement) and (b) 10’ x 7.5’ (75 sq. ft.) 
pole sign to the property line on Eleven Mile Road, (gas station) by side. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza asked Chairman Watripont if they were ready for a Motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated yes. 

 
 
Motion: 
Board Member H. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Install signs as follows: 
1. One (1) wall sign “Dunkin’ Donuts (cup logo)” @ 22.5” x 18’-8” = 35 sq. ft. on 

the south elevation. 
2. One (1) wall sign “Drive Thru” @ 25” x 65-5/8” = 8.99 sq. ft. on the south ele-

vation. 
TOTAL 43.99 SQ. FT. ON SOUTH ELEVATION OVER DOOR OF 3827 11 MILE 
3. One (1) wall sign “Dunkin’ Donuts Coffee & More” @ 64-7/16” x 132-11/16” = 

59.37 sq. ft. on the east elevation. 
4. One (1) wall sign “Drive Thru” @ 25” x 65-5/8” =8.99 sq .ft. on the east elevation. 
TOTAL 68.36 SQ. FT. ON THE EAST ELEVATION OF 4007 11 MILE. 
5. One (1) monument sign, 16’ in height, with a sign area 6’-6” x 11.5’ = 74.75 

sq. ft., to within three (3) feet from the south property line. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 24 

 

With the Condition that the petitioner relinquishes the variance from April 10, 
2002, (a) a 10’ x 7.5’ (75 sq. ft.) pole sign to the property line on the East 
Eleven Mile Road (fast food advertisement) and (b) 10’ x 7.5’ (75 sq. ft.) pole 
sign to the property line on Eleven Mile Road (gas station price sign).  

 
Reason being: Lack of Identification, Needs approval of the Board and Not a Det-
riment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Becher supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member H. Brasza; Support 
by Board Member Becher in support of the variance as written with the under-
standing the relinquishing of the 4-10-2002 items 5(a) and 5(b).  He asked for Roll 
Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (5-3). 

 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Becher  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary Nestorowicz  No, because he believes it is sign overkill on  

      the building. 

Board Member Pauta No, for the same reason. 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Watripont   No, because he does think it is too much as it  
      is as well. 

 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
Nick Shango stated and he will take his stickers down and that is a promise.  He 
wants to mention that item 1, is not a variance; he does not know why that was on 
there. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated that it is a total sign package. 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector stated at the time he (Mr. Shango) turned it in, he 
had not obtained the permit to install it; he came back later. 
 
Nick Shango thanked the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 25 

 

11. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT:  Mr. Alan Saroki 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Allan Saroki 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  23400—23402 Dequindre 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-30-306-003 and 004 
ZONE:     M-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
1. Allow outdoor storage of 14,250 sq. ft. as per the plan. 
2. Allow outdoor storage within the front setback of Kathleen as per the plan. 
3. Allow outdoor storage within the 20’ side setback on Bart as per the plan. 
4. Waive 20 required off street parking spaces as per the plan. 
5. Allow hard surfacing to the Dequindre property line for parking and Bart property 

lines as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02, Item (s) Paragraph (2): Industrial Standards, Open storage other 
than junk…The designated area shall be hard surfaced and screened from the pub-
lic street and any residentially zoned areas…Further, the designated area may not 
exceed fifty (50) percent of the gross floor area of the primary structure. 
Section 17.02, item (b): Side & rear yards…Twenty (20) feet each in M-2 Districts. 
Section 17.02 (a) front setback in M-2: M-2 front setback is 25 feet and along ma-
jor thoroughfare is 50 feet. 
Section 4.32 Item (h) Paragraph (20): Off-street parking requirements.  For auto 
repair facilities, 1 for 500 sq. ft. of building area. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and 
address for the record. 
 
Allan Saroki, 23400 Dequindre, through 23402 Dequindre, Warren, Michigan, 
appeared before the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked Mr. Saroki the reason for his petition. 
 
Allan Saroki stated he has two (2) users at this building that have been there for fifty 
(50) years and he bought the building fourteen (14) years ago and had the exact 
same uses and that it is, is parking in the back of his fenced in area of the building.  
These are variances that have come about over the years because the city must 
have changed its setback requirements, because there is fencing that goes beyond 
the setbacks and that was put in, he assumes, at the time the building was built.  He 
needs the outdoor storage for his tenants, otherwise they would not be able to 
operate their businesses and that was the purpose for which the building was 
purchased for fourteen (14) years ago. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item; hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated she was surprised that he came before the Board in 
regards to item 2: Allow outdoor storage within the front setback on Kathleen as per 
the plan and Kathleen if he drives down it, it is so overgrown with weeds coming into 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 26 

 

the alley that it surprises her that he has not cleaned that up.  There is tremendous 
overgrowth coming from his facility; number one. 
 
Allan Saroki stated that has been cleaned up. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated she was there today. 
 
Allan Saroki stated in question that she was there today? 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated yes; it has not been cleaned up; he might want to 
speak to them; and they are literally weeds that have grown very large.  That is one, 
number two, this property on both the south on Bart Avenue line and Kathleen line 
and actually up in between the two (2) buildings, there is barbed wire on top of the 8’ 
fence—not legal. 
 
(Inaudible comment by a Board Member) 
 
Board Member S. Brasza (after a comment made) stated they do have permission to 
do it, great.  She was just surprised at the overgrowth. 
 
Allan Saroki stated they have been taking care of so much at that building and there 
is just a lot and it is just one item at a time.  That land behind the building there they 
have… 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated it is right at the setback; right at the property line. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked Mr. Allan to speak into the microphone more. 
 
Allan Saroki stated basically they have; the building is in very good shape; he has 
been taking care of it.  There might be some weeds at the back of there, but the 
building is very presentable and he has been taking very good care of that building.  
It has a brand new roof that he put on it; new gutters that he put on it and he has 
painted it. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated they are not discussing the building; they are 
speaking of the setbacks. 
 
Allan Saroki stated he knows that they are talking about the setbacks but their issue 
about the weeds… 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated which is at the setback.  Meaning it is at the 
property line and so he has encroached into Kathleen with the overgrowth; she 
means that it almost hit her car.  It is that low; hanging that low.  Just for his 
information. 
 
Board Member Becher stated she also went and looked at this property and besides 
the overgrowth, which bother her a bit; on Kathleen on the south property line, he 
was supposed to put slatting in the fence and there is a dilapidated wooden fence. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 27 

 

 
Allan Saroki stated yes, they were not required to put slatting in there because the 
initial plans were approved with the wooden fence there and that was the plan… 
 
Board Member Becher stated she just read it from 1991 and it says to put slatting. 
 
Allan Saroki stated the Planning Department, they went and they looked at it… 
 
Board Member Becher stated well, she thinks he needs to look at that wooden fence 
because it needs to come down; it is rotten and it needs to come down and it is 
sagging and it is ready to fall down.  Also, he has one (1) handicap parking space in 
the front of this building and there was a wrecked car parked in the space.  That is a 
handicap parking space, they are not supposed to put a wrecked car in that parking 
space and then also, she knows that the Fire Department okayed him to go to the 
Planning Commission, but when she was there the other day, he had cars parked on 
the north side in the—what she assumes is the fire lane—and if it there was a 
problem, she does not believe they could get a truck through the other day she was 
there, so they really should not be parking outside of their fence. 
 
Allan Saroki stated if he may interject; he does not work there… 
 
Board Member Becher stated well she is just telling him what he is responsible for 
what goes on there if he is present before the Board asking for things.  Also, he is 
speaking about how well the building is maintained; his sign, he has no permission 
for his painted sign on the front of his building.  These were just the things she 
noticed when she was there. 
 
Allan Saroki stated right, he is working on gaining a variance for the signage. 
 
Board Member Becher stated well he has to come back before the Board for that. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated she would recommend at this time that this gentleman 
go back to the people that are occupying this building if he is not the one that has 
been there and discuss the Board’s concerns and then come back at a later date. 
 
Allan Saroki stated he has been through all of this with them.  If the City wants, they 
could issue tickets to the tenants, basically… 
 
Board Member Pauta stated they do not do business that way; they would like it to 
be done correct the first time around, so unless… 
 
Allan Saroki stated because the weeds are not cut in the back of the building that the 
Board is not going to consider his request to use this for outdoor storage. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated because of all the concerns by the illegal parking of 
cars, the weeds and everything, he needs to make a list of all the concerns 
discussed, go back and discuss them with the people, then come back before the 
Board in about four (4) weeks. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 28 

 

 
Chairman Watripont stated the weeds are a concern when he is asking for outdoor 
storage because it does contaminate the area and everything else because it could 
lead to rodents and so forth, so the weeds are a direct relationship to his request for 
outdoor storage at this point and time.  He did not see the broken down vehicle in 
the handicap spot, but obviously if there is a broken down vehicle in a handicap 
spot, the handicap spot is there for a reason, so these are things that he, the owner, 
should make sure the tenants are doing properly.  Board Member Pauta is 
requesting that the Board reschedule’s this, so he would have time to speak to his 
tenants and even possibly bring his tenants to the meeting with him, so that they 
could address some of these items. 
 
Allan Saroki stated the inspections have been taking place at the building for the last 
month, have been satisfactory.  The City Inspectors have been coming by and 
looking at the building; they did not say anything to him about the weeds in the back; 
they have cleaned up the cars along the parking lane or whatever and they have… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated but his property is not in compliance with City 
Ordinances and that is why he is here asking for a variance.  So, if he wants to 
move… 
 
Allan Saroki stated well when it was built it was in compliance with city ordinances. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he is not sure on when that was and what it was and 
what the reasoning for all for him being here is; maybe Everett could shed some light 
on that. 
 
Allan Saroki stated it was pretty obvious, it was because the City Ordinances have 
changed, the setback ordinances have changed and that is why people could not 
park in the back of their building inside of the fenced in area that was the purpose of 
that is for.  He has a collision shop and a transmission shop and his tenants cannot 
park cars in the back of their building overnight.  Is there any place any single city in 
the country that does not allow that for these types of light industrial uses? He is not 
standing there trying to fight the Board, but he has been in front of Planning, he is 
coming up before the Board now trying to get everything cleared up so they could 
have everything so… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated and the Board is trying to clear it up as well. 
 
Board Member Descamps to the petitioner stated he believes that he (Mr. Saroki) 
misunderstands the Board’s purpose in being present; their goal as a Board is to 
clean up the city and make it look presentable and work well inside of itself and with 
its neighbors… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated within the ordinances. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated within the ordinances and that is they are giving 
them.  He (Mr. Saroki) is not being picked on; he is being asked to go back to his 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 29 

 

tenants because he owns the building. 
 
Allan Saroki stated he understood that the ordinance change and that is not… 
 
Board Member Descamps stated and the Board is not going to tell him that they are 
not going to let him have the ordinance; their job is to clean up the businesses.  The 
business has an issue—not him—his tenants have an issue and they need to be 
addressed.  That is all the Board is asking for him to do and then come back. 
 
Allan Saroki stated he understands that but he has been through all of this with his 
tenants; they have been going through this for several months.  This is not new; they 
have done a lot of work to get to this point. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated he actually has two comments in regards to this.  He is 
always very wary when someone is just asking for outdoor storage and there is not 
better clarification and the reason he says that is that a lot of times when the Board 
gives outdoor storage, especially when there are stuff whether it is cars being 
worked on or stuff like that, they try to find out a limit of how long some of those cars 
could sit there, because they do not want things to turn into like a junk yard.  He 
personally would like to see a better clarification as to what is being stored, how long 
these things are going to be stored there; to make sure of a better clarification of 
what the storage is.  Also, two, if the Board approves the outdoor storage, he 
personally would like to see the petitioner give up the barb wire that was approved 
previously, because he does not see why that is needed on this property. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated she would like to explain to the petitioner that the 
Board is not obligated to give him any kind of variance; he is asking the Board for a 
favor essentially because the ordinance is this and he is asking the Board to give 
him a variance from the ordinance, so if the Board asks him for something as simple 
as cleaning up, just clean it up, simple as that; because the Board does not have to 
give him this. 
 
Allan Saroki stated he understands; he is an attorney. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated so he is an attorney, he should know this already. 
 
Allan Saroki stated okay that is fine, he will clean up the weeds and make sure that 
no one parks in the handicap spot, if he could prevent that and ask them not to park; 
they have already spoken to them about parking along the side of the building. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz to the petitioner asked how much time he thinks he would 
need before coming back. 
 
Allan Saroki stated to clean up the weeds in the back, with that it would take a week 
maybe; not even. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated August 26. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 30 

 

Chairman Watripont stated would he be able to speak to his tenants and to possibly 
try to bring them before the Board because some of the questions that the Board 
has, even though he (Mr. Saroki) is an attorney, may not be able to answer directly 
as to what they are doing inside the building and what they need it specifically for.  If 
he had his tenants present it may be helpful as well; would August 26, be good? 
 
Allan Saroki stated August 26, would be fine; he understands they cannot store 
garbage back there and cannot store junk vehicles; these vehicles are for repair. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked if there is a motion for August 26. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Pauta made the motion to reschedule the meeting to August 26, 
2015; Supported by Board Member Descamps.  
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Pauta; Support by 
Board Member Descamps to reschedule this matter to August 26, 2015. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8-0). 

 
Chairman Watripont stated this is being rescheduled to August 26, 2015 and it will 
not be re-noticed. 
 
Allan Saroki asked what time it would be. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated same time, 7:30 p.m. It is a Regular Meeting. 
 
 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT:  Morisette Investments, LLC 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Dennis Dewulf / Dewulf Associates 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  25028 Schoenherr 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-24-352-037 
ZONE:     M-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Hard surface to no less than five (5) feet of the Schoenherr and Ten Mile property 
lines for parking as per the plans. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 Paragraph (a): Front yard setback in M-2 is 25’ except along a major 
thoroughfare it is 50’. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium for his name and address for 
the record. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 31 

 

Dennis Dewulf, Architect, Dewulf Associates, 27938 Worthington, St. Clair Shores, 
Michigan, appeared before the Board and stated if it helps any that his write up is 
smaller than the rest of them.  (Laughter)   
 
Chairman Watripont stated maybe. 
 
Dennis Dewulf stated they are present this evening to represent Mr. Morisette who is 
the principal in Morisette Automotive and who has been at his location now for going 
on twenty-eight (28) years; he has an overall large development plan following the 
purchase of the Burger King property to the north of his present property, and this is 
a step one towards that realization.  There is a rezoning issue to be taken up concur-
rently; it has already been applied for and there is also a Site Plan process under-
way and what they are looking for this evening is a variance to allow cars to park on 
his present repair shop property within 5’ of the property lines.  At the present time, 
the parking stands right to the property lines and the entire site is paved.  They 
would be cutting back the pavement and putting in some greenery and allowing only 
four (4) parking spaces on his present site to serve as the intake for his auto repair 
business and the hardship basically is that his current property is not large enough 
to put any parking on it without tearing down his present building.  The 50’ setback 
requirement is not reasonable at this time because of the location of the present 
building.  Additionally, he believes as the designed professional involved in this that 
the overall program that is being undertaken would be an asset and an improvement 
to that intersection and he would request that the Board look upon this request fa-
vorably. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter.  Hearing and seeing no one, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated with this variance that he is asking for on the plan is 
just basically is those four (4) parking spaces, the three (3) and the handicap is all 
he is asking for?  
 
Dennis Dewulf stated that was correct.  The rest of the parcel that he sees to the 
north… 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated yes, he sees all of the parking in the back and stuff 
like that. 
 
Dennis Dewulf stated it is under other ownership; with Mr. Morisette being the prin-
cipal in that other ownership as well, so this is step one towards the realization of 
that eventual plan. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated he sees no issues with this personally. 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 32 

 

Board Member S. Brasza stated having seen this one today, she also sees 
no…actually it is going to be an improvement that she assumes they are going to tie 
into that little bit of greenbelt that is off to the north of the Schoenherr Road, the 
sidewalk area.  It looks like to the north of this section that they are going to put in; 
there is already a little greenbelt between the property line and the sidewalk. 
 
Dennis Dewulf stated the Burger King property is going to become a part of the 
overall development. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated so they are going to tie in to that front, is that what 
they are doing? 
 
Dennis Dewulf stated correct. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated super and thanked Mr. Dewulf. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated if there is no further discussion, he would like to make 
his motion. 
 
Board Member Furgal asked if she could say one thing.  She appreciates his list of 
hardships; it was perfect and thanked Mr. Dewulf. 
 
Dennis Dewulf thanked Board Member Furgal. 
 
 

Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Hard surface to no less than five (5) feet of the Schoenherr and Ten Mile property 
lines for parking as per the plans. 
 
Reason being: Size and Shape of the Lot and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Secretary Nestorowicz; Support by 
Board Member S. Brasza in support of the variance as written; reasons being: Size 
and Shape of the Lot, Not a Detriment to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (8-0). 

 

Secretary Nestorowicz   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Becher  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2015 

Page 33 

 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 

 
 
13. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated no new business. 
 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to adjourn the meeting; Board Member 
Becher supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8-0). 

 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

        Roman Nestorowicz  
        Secretary of the Board 


